Spelling Manual For Eastern James Bay Cree Syllabics

Northern Dialect

Revised by: Alice Duff, Linda Visitor, Marguerite MacKenzie, Marie-Odile Junker

March 2017

Previous versions by Luci Bobbish Salt, Marguerite MacKenzie

> Cree School Board Cree Programs, Chisasibi, Quebec © Cree School Board, 2017. All rights reserved. ISBN 978-1-927937-62-4

۲.۹.۲ ⊲ٍ۵.۹.۲

Table of Contents

Introduction	. 3
Syllabics Chart - Eastern James Bay	. 4
Part One: Dialect Differences1.1 The syllabic chart1.2 North - South differences1.3 Eastmain speakers1.4 \lor , \checkmark , \lor , \lor , \heartsuit , \heartsuit , \heartsuit , \heartsuit	.5 .5 .6
Part Two: Ր"₽∽Ċ₽≏" The Use of Dots	. 7
2.1 Dots over a syllabic symbol	.7
2.2 Dots in front of a syllabic symbol	. 8
Part Three: Syllabic Finals	. 9
3.1 Small syllabic symbols at the end of a word:	
3.2 No ^L or ^e in the middle of a word	
3.3 ^b and ^d at the end of a word	10
3.4 How the syllabic finals change when an ending is added	11
3.4.1 Words ending with <, ^c , ^b , ^c , ^c , ^c , ^s , ^c , ^c	11
3.4.2 Words ending with ^d	
3.4.3 Words ending with °	
3.4.4 Some exceptions	
3.5 h and φ	
3.6 The use of the " (h) לי"לֹ ሳየ	
3.6.1 " in the middle of a word	
3.6.2 " at the end of a word	
Inanimate plural marker	
Animate obviative marker	
" (h) on expressions of time	
 " (h) on habitual verbs " (h) as a marker of Imperative verbs for second person singular forms 	
3.6.3 Locative suffix	
3.6.4 " (h) in Verb Suffixes	
	2.5
Part Four: Δ , $\dot{\Delta}$ and \dot{P}	24
4.1 Δ at the end of words	
4.2 $\dot{\Delta}$ and Δ in the middle of a word	
4.3 Using ►	24
4.4 New spelling for \dot{C}° and Λd° , $\Im \Lambda^{\perp}$ and $\Im \Lambda \cdot \dot{d}^{\circ}$	25
Part Five: Syllabic Symbols not to forget to write	26
5.1 Short Δ or \triangleleft at the beginning	
5.2. △ and ▷	
5.3 ⊠, Å and ⊳	
5.4 Δ° at the end of a word	

5.5	σ at the beginning of a word2	28				
5.6	↑ at the beginning	28				
5.7	in the middle of a word	29				
Part Six	: Double Consonants	0				
6.1	Where to write a syllabic character twice	0				
6.2	Endings for verb conjugation (#09) 3	0				
Part Sev	ven: Adding endings to nouns	1				
7.1	Adding endings to nouns which end in ▷	31				
7.2	Adding endings to nouns which end in Δ	31				
7.3	Adding endings to nouns which end in Γ° , \mathcal{J}° , \mathcal{J}° , \mathcal{F}°	2				
Part Eig	ht: م'° and أن at the end of a word and otheriuuu endings	3				
8.1	ک Verbs ending in ۲°					
8.2	Verbs ending in أن	4				
Part Nii	ne: Boundaries	5				
9. 1.						
•••=•	L.1 Personal Prefix on Nouns					
	L2 Personal Prefix on Verbs					
9.2	Using preverbs					
9.3 M	laking compound words					
Part Te	n: Punctuation	1				
Part Ele	even: Writing Names	2				
Part Tw	/elve: Standard Roman Orthography (SRO)4	3				
	Definition					
12.2	Vowel length: hats or double vowels4	3				
12.3 (12.3 Combination of finals					

Introduction

People have been writing syllabics using their own style, depending on where they learned the system, which community they come from, how old they are and what pronunciation they use. This manual has been prepared to help people write the Cree syllabics in a more consistent way.

Cree Language and Culture teachers and linguists together with the Education Consultants in Cree Programs have been working toward a consistent spelling system for the Southern and for the Northern dialects for many years. The process is still ongoing and this manual is updated periodically. There have been spelling revisions since the first Cree Lexicon was published in 1987, and these revisions have been incorporated into all the dictionaries published in 2004, 2012, 2013 as well as the web version: dictionary.eastcree.org, which contains the latest revisions.

Although each Cree community in the James Bay area has its own distinct style of speaking the language, there are two main dialects of Cree with different pronunciations, so there are two main ways of spelling - Northern and Southern.

Syllabics Chart - Eastern James Bay

∇ e		∆ i	∆ ii	⊳ u	⊳ uu	⊲ a	⊲ aa		Finals ° u (w)	" h
.⊽ we		⊠ wi	ن∆ wii			·⊲ wa		.∕j waa		
∨ pe	·∨ pwe	∧ pi	∧́ pii	> pu	≻ puu	< pa	⊂ paa	.∹ pwaa	< p	
∪	∙∪	∩	∩)	כ	C	Ċ	.Ċ	c	
te	twe	ti	tii	tu	tuu	ta	taa	twaa	t	
۹	.9	ρ	ρ	d	j	b	Ь		ь	ط
ke	kwe	ki	kii	ku	kuu	ka	kaa	kwaa	k	kw
ר	·ๅ	∩	Ċ	J	j	ե	i	.ij	ι	
che	chwe	chi	chii	chu	chuu	cha	chaa	chwaa	ch	
ר	ר.	Г	Ċ	」	_j	L	L	.∟	L	
me	mwe	mi	mii	mu	muu	ma	maa	mwaa	m	
ר	ر.	с	خ	د_	نے	د	ذ	.خ	د	
le	lwe	li	اii	lu	luu	la	laa	Iwaa	ا	
ס־	ە ^{ت.}	σ	ċ-	م	ف	o_	ف		م	
ne	nwe	ni	nii	nu	nuu	na	naa	nwaa	n	
ጎ	۲.	ہ	نہ	ہ	نہ	հ	نے	.i,	ר	
se	swe	si	sii	su	suu	sa	saa	swaa	S	
し she	∙പ shwe	∽ shi	・ shii	∾ shu	.∼ shuu	∽ sha	ら shaa	shwaa	sh	
Ч ye	·ч ywe		خ yii	ל yu	रं yuu	⊦ ya	با yaa	.і ₋ ywaa	ч У	
∼ re	・つ rwe	∩_ ri	i⊂ rii	Р ru	≻ ruu		ら raa	.c rwaa	ч r	
vv	.९∕	∧	Å	⊳	。	ペ	ぐ	·ぐ	<	
ve	vwe	vi	vii	vu	vuu	va	vaa	vwaa	v, f, ph	
じ	・り	റ	ດ	ව	້ງ	C	Ċ	·୯	e	
the	thwe	thi	thii	thu	thuu	tha	thaa	thwaa	th	

Revised March 2017

Part One: Dialect Differences

1.1 The syllabic chart

The full syllabic chart shows all the symbols that are used in writing Eastern James Bay Cree. Some symbols are used only in the Southern dialect, not in the Northern - as explained below.

1.2 North - South differences

Speakers from Wemindji, Chisasibi, Whapmagoostui, and sometimes Eastmain use $\dot{\triangleleft}$, $\dot{\triangleleft}$, $\dot{\textsf{L}}$, $\dot{\textsf{$

Southern	Northern
₽୮".₺°	∢∟∟∘
V۲۹	┥
Ͷ·Ϫ"Ϙ	Ċ ∙⊲́"∆́₽°
¶⊾·ସ୕<Ľ୯	b ∽·⊲́∧Ľ ^c
1 .់ៃ	i ∙bª
ר ך∧ר פ	Ĺ Ĺ∧ィª
∙⊲⊷	نح ⊦⊲ٍ₀
۲ ſż	ڶ ٢٢٩
∿ ∿∾	° کرین من
4 b°	j b°

The Northern speakers do not use <, C, b, L, α , β , ω , β but instead use Λ , \cap , ρ , Γ , σ , r', σ , γ , β .

Southern	Northern
<مۇھە<	∧٩٩٩٩
C "bi>°	٥-ظة"
b < ^c	₽∧ ^c
L"ḃ∨∽	ſ "Ġ <i>Ċ∽</i>
Lr∝"∆b°	Γ ィσ"ൎΔΡ°
ڡٵٮ	σĹ
Чġо	rio°
∘∟∠⊳∿∙	J. ↓

⋟ "Ր蟊པ	₽"∩⊸└

However, *◄* is used in both Northern and Southern dialects at the beginning of a word, and after " in VTI verbs.

Southern	Northern
┫∩"₀	┫∁"₀
┫Ӷӄҩ	┫Ӷӄҹ
┫Ӷ┉┛	┫Ӷ┉┙
⊳ċl" ⊲ L	⊳ċг"⊲∟

1.3 Eastmain speakers

In Eastmain, speakers use both Southern and Northern pronunciations since the community is on the boundary of the two dialect areas. These pronunciations are evident in a single word and show up in the written form using both dialects.

1.4 ∖, ∠, ∠, ∖, ` and ∿, 𝒯, ∾, ∽, ∽

Both these sets are used in writing East Cree words. In some communities speakers do not pronounce the \mathcal{N} , \mathcal{I} , ∞ , ω , ω , ω the same way as other communities and may want to check their spelling with the dictionary.

$\langle \langle \rangle \rangle$	$\sqrt{\sqrt{2}}$
۲Ġ	∿₋՟
ґ∿Ҏ┉⊳∝	∿i∘
ڶ	∿ , y
ℯ ⅎ _᠃ ∩ _Ր ʹ∘	⋈⋎⋖∕⋎
>نم	~ b°
Ҷ ∩д°	is ~

Part Two: ∩"₽∽Ċ₽≏" The Use of Dots

2.1 Dots over a syllabic symbol

The dot above a syllabic symbol marks a long vowel.

Short (no do	t)	Long (dot)	
i	ک ∾۹Ç₀	ii	Ճ⊦≻∘
wi	∕₽₽₽	wii	نف ۲ه۲
pi	∧Г∧≻°	pii	ᢥГ∧ѐ⁰
ti	N∹°	tii	Ų<ċ
ki	₽∧с	kii	⊳ſ₽́
chi	ل∙بت₀	chii	ŕ ċ_°
mi	₣₽₽	mii	۲ ۲
ni	σÅ	nii	σÅ
si	┙ ╯ [╲]	sii	י ׂ⊳ׂי
shi	∿ ₽٩	shii	J°P"⊳
u	$\mathbf{P}^{"} \wedge \ddot{\mathbf{P}}$	uu	⊳ ⊂
pu	≻ ∙ḋĊ°	puu	`> ċ-°
tu	∆" ⊃ ∩∟	tuu	ֿי⊷ִיּ
ku	۹∪γ₀	kuu	٩°
chu	J·⊲∽⊳	chuu	j À>>°
mu	ٵ ڹؠ؋	muu	۲
nu	ہ ∠۔	nuu	°4^)" ف
su	∧ ɾ ┛"Ċ°	suu	୷ ୕∧"∩∟
shu	√∾ം്°	shuu	⋰ ∾☆"
yu	ℾ⋞⋼∊⋼	yuu	√i ∩°

Short (no de	ot)	Long (dot)
a a a a	⊴∩ª ⊲∧° ⊳ċг"⊲∟ ⊲" ∩∧"⊲г⊶	aa waa paa taa kaa chaa maa	, ح≓∿وم ح"هو د"∩م ن∿م ن ن
		naa saa shaa yaa	ב ּי ⊾ יל∘ ג רּי⊲ֿ∧נ∘ י∕יּהאַ ג

Note: there is a difference in pronunciation between Wemindji and Chisasibi for the command (imperative) verbs in the VTI (acting on an inanimate object) conjugation, such as $\triangleright C \Gamma^{"} \triangleleft^{L_{\times}}$ The command form for 'you (singular) hit it' is $\triangleright C \Gamma^{"} \dashv^{"}$ for Wemindji, but sounds like $\triangleright C \mathring{L}^{"}$ for Chisasibi.

 $\triangleright \dot{\mathsf{C}} \Gamma^{\mathsf{H}} \dot{\mathsf{d}}^{\mathsf{H}} \quad \triangleleft^{\mathsf{e}} \quad \Gamma^{\mathsf{h}} \cap \mathfrak{d}_{\mathsf{x}} \qquad \qquad \triangleright \dot{\mathsf{C}} \ddot{\mathsf{L}}^{\mathsf{H}} \quad \triangleleft^{\mathsf{e}} \quad \Gamma^{\mathsf{h}} \cap \mathfrak{d}_{\mathsf{x}}$

2.2 Dots in front of a syllabic symbol

Dots are written before a syllabic symbol and indicate a *w* sound before the vowel, and after the consonant.

No w (no dot in front)		w (dot in f	front)
i	۵Ç₀	wi	۲Ċ
ii	ൎ∆∹∩ݠ	wii	'∆ ∧ ^ι
aa	∢∨∪₀	waa	۰¢≻⊶
paa	Ċ °	pwaa	·ʹ
taa	Ċ "Րൎ⊶°	twaa	• Ċ ᠕ᢁ
kaa	٩ن⊲ٍ₀	kwaa	.i∧i∘
chaa	i⊾	chwaa	۰i۰
maa	Ľ٩	mwaa	۰Ľ٩
naa	ŕ ċ °	nwaa	۲ .ب. ه
yaa	ר ָּי ∘	ywaa	۳ ۰۶ ۰۰

Part Three: Syllabic Finals

The syllabic finals are a small version of the last column of regular size symbols on the chart. They are used mainly at the ends of words. ' and " and " are also used in the middle of words. The syllabic finals may be used alone or in a set of two or three, but no more than three in a row are used. When there are three in a row, the last one is always ".

3.1 Small syllabic symbols at the end of a word:

One final	Two finals	Three finals
ف.< °	ݥ べ• "	⊲d "<"
⊳ [,] ib c	⊲d " ≺	רייכיי
م حلّ	,i < יי	.خ∾cıı
q ۲ م	Ċ∆ ۰<	⊳⊷⊷۹
.Ąr	⊳֊ൎႱ < "	ۍ ۲۵ ۱۱
⊲ن∟	۲ "c	⊲∩"⁴"
⊲∩L	<u>ن</u> مر	⊲Ӷݖ┛҅҅
ÞĊĊ `	∕∾٢	୵୳୶୶୲
ГĊ `	<, <, <, <, <, <, <, <, <, <, <, <, <, <	⊳∩∿₀י
⊲.j∿~~	ح ^م ه	<u>ڬ</u> ؘٟڬۯڂڡ ۬ٵ
ſ∩"Ċ "	ٻ⊃∼م	⊳ү́∾У́∾₽॥

3.2 No^L or ^e in the middle of a word

Do not write the small syllabic finals L and α in words like these:

Write	Not
Ċ ~ Ċ"	Ċ °Ċ"
⊲ σ Ċ"	⊲°. C"
Ĺ ϭ ᡤ	Ĺ≤ŕ
Ĺ σ Ċ°	<u>ز</u> ؞ڔؘ
ᠳᢕᡆ	ملم
▰∋"੫≻▫	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
♂ `)"∩L	°⊃"∩∟
σ̈́	٩
∆Ċ ℾ ᡬ⊲"∿/ᠳĊ ℾ ᡬ⊲"∿	ڬĊ [ٟ] ڗڂ٩؊
$\land \Box \land \land $	$\forall r \forall 5$
⊲́Г∧≻°	٩٢٧٦٥

3.3 ^b and ^d at the end of a word

Most words end in ^d, only a small number end in ^b.

ĹÞ	ьj.
9∪ ₽	ℾℴ∽∩嘴
ې∾۹∪⊳	ÅÞŸ"∩ ª
႞ႜၑ	j۹
⊳j∙	۲ [֊] ﻧﺎ
∧;>"∩" •	محخ م
⊳⊶∽⊳	੶∆o~~ °
٩٩	᠋᠘ᢣᠴ᠊ᢦ
•J≺İ≻-ŵ	᠂᠊᠋᠆᠋ᡃᡬᠣ᠋᠆ᡃᡬ᠙᠋ᢩᡄ᠕ᢣᡃ
ہ "نے	۲۳ ۹
∧i∆⊳	Ӷѻ҃"∆҅
ڂ _ٛ ݮ؋ ۥ	j.a
٩∼٩∽٩	ە ~خ
⊳৸∩৸৳	⊲⊷∹ف
ڶٟ <i>\</i> ^ڔ ؗ٢ ٥	۰⊲İ√۲a
¢≺Ų	d∆۲ ª

You must pay attention to ^d and ^b at the end of verbs.

ᡖ᠂ᠳᠴ᠕᠋᠆ ᠉		6 Poridia"nia
Ġ	DĊF"ď"b /6 DĊĽ"b	Ġ ⊳∩Ċſ"⊲Ľ¢

For words ending in \bullet be careful to write \land , \cap , \checkmark , σ and not >, >, \sim , \bullet before final \bullet .

Write	Not
ך∾ ט	٩C∾J
⊲Րൎ൶൪	⊲∩ċ.>⁴
• ∿ .	Ļ؇ؠ
⊳∾∩∿₫	⊳∽┌∾⊲
À٢Ļ IJ	٩٦٩٩
୮ ୷∽∩ ୶	۲۰٬۵۹
؇ ڂ۬ڬ ۩	؇ۘڂؗڮ
۰ ۵~`	٩<∞⊃٩
੶Ăſſ ∧ª "	᠂᠘ᡝᡗᠵ᠕ᡃ

3.4 How the syllabic finals change when an ending is added

Animate plural suffix ⁶

When you add this ending change to Λ , \cap , P, Γ , σ , r', J' then add \bullet .

	Singular	Plural
р	> ئرن	ு ்∧்
t	<u>ݥ</u> ݷݑݛ	᠘ᡝ᠘ᢆᢣ
k	⊳j⊳	⊳i₽u
m	⊲ن∟	⊲نْ ۲ ۲
n	⊲۲".j °	ڟ٦"
S	σĹ	᠂᠆᠘᠇
sh	⊲∙⊲́∿∽∽	⊲∙⊲໋∿ √ ৸

Locative suffix

When you add the locative ending, used for the English prepositions "in, at, to, on, etc." change the small <, c, b, d, b, L, c, h, σ to big Λ , \bigcap , ρ , d, Γ , Γ , σ , r', \mathcal{I} .

	Locative
.<`ף ‹	·Ϛʹ₽ Ⴖ "レ
⊲ن∟	⊲ئ ۲"∿
⊴∟.₽₽	⊲۲" ∙6 σ" ∿
÷Å ∽	ᡠ᠕ᡝᡗ
Ėrżċ"∩ 	<u></u> ۲۲۲۹ ۲۲۹ ۲۲۹
Ċ"∩∧·∆ª	Ċ"∩∧∙∆ σ" ∿

Note that another ending which sounds exactly like the locative can be added to nouns. This is the **simulative** suffix and is translated as "like a" as in this sentence: $\dot{L}^{"\iota}$ $\dot{\Delta} \dot{\subset}^{"}$ $\dot{\Delta} \dot{\subset}^{"} \dot{C} \dot{\partial} \dot{\leftarrow}^{\circ"}$ $\triangleright \dot{\delta} \dot{\Delta}^{"}$.

	Simulative
ف_<`	ن_ خ ۳
⊲∩∟	⊲∩⅃℡
> ئرن	ஂஂ⅄ ℡
م ۲ ۵	ح² ףיי⊍
⊲∩"₀	⊲∩"d"∿
σĹ	᠆᠘᠇ᠬ

Diminutive suffix

When you add the diminutive ending, meaning "small or young", you usually change the small syllabic <, c, b, d, b, c, b, d, Γ , Γ , σ .

	Diminutive
⊲d"≺	⊲d" ∧ ∽
୲੶ଐ∽⋫	∩∙₫∽ ₽ ∿∽
⊲∩"₫	⊲ ∁ "┩∁∾
⊴َL _" .p •	ⅆℾ℡ℹℴ ℴ ∽

In many words there is often an additional change so that \dot{c} becomes \dot{b} , \cap and c become Γ , \dot{n} becomes \dot{r} , \dot{s} becomes \dot{r} , and \dot{s} becomes $\overset{\circ}{\sim}$. In these cases there may be two pronunciations of the diminutive word, as seen in the examples below.

	Diminutive		
۲" د	∟"∪ "		
ГĊ	ſĊĴ∽	ר ו ∽∽	
r'⊳∩ `	ґ⊳₼∽∽	∿⊳∪∪∿∾	ᡗ᠔⊲ᡬ
$\triangleleft \cap^{\tt L}$	⊲Ր⅃∿∽		
⊲ن∟	∾٦ئ		
Ъŗ,	<u>م</u> رنې		
∧≻ᡤ `	∿∿∿أ		
L∾Uq	Ր∽ Ր վ∿∽		

An exception is the change of final ${}^{\mathbf{b}}$ to ${\boldsymbol{\Gamma}}$ in this word:

ᠳ᠋᠈**৽** ᠳ᠉**Ր**᠉ᡠᠥᡗ᠉

Possessive suffix

When the possessive endings are added, little <, c, b, d, b, L, a, h, σ become big Λ , Ω , P, d, Γ , Γ , σ , r', J.

Possessive
ஏர்்ர் ∧ட
ᠳ ᠋᠋
o-d P ∟
ਗ਼ਗ਼ ੶ਗ਼੶
ᠳᡣ᠋ᡃᡪ ᡏ ᠍ᢩᡄᠳᡃ
ᠳĊГ"ൎ៰ ൳ ൎᡆᠳᡃ
ᡔᠦ᠋Ľ ᠠ ᠘
ഄ൛ൎഀ ഀ ഺ

Here is a summary of how the finals change:

	Animate	Diminutive	Locative	Possessive
	Plural			
> ښز	ர்ர்∧ு	௴ ஂ∧∿	ு் ∧ ா	ஏர்ர் ∧ ∟
⊳i⊂	⊳i ∩ '	⊳i∩∽	⊳i∩"'	∟ان
Ċᠳᡬ	Ċ ѻ҄ Ҏ ҅	ؘ ح؋ ٩	Ċ ヮ ዸ ₽"	ᠳᡬ᠆ᡠ ₽ └
⊲ن۲	⊲৸৸	⊲⇔L∞	⊲ئ۲"۰	ᠳ᠋ᡣ᠋ᡃᡪ ᡏ ᠍ᢩᡄᠳᡃ
>∩∘	ݢ∩ݮݛ	᠅ ∩൳∽, ᠅Ր ൳∽	⊃∩ σ "∿	ᡔᠫ ᠂ᡏ

σĹ	ᠳĹ ᠠ ᡃ	σĹ ſ∽	᠆᠘ ᠇᠈ ᠃ᡃ	ᠳᠳĹ ᠠ
⊲ri ∽	⊲ri √ '	⊲∩i₀ ∿ ∽	⊲ՐԵં ∫ "י	ℴ⅃ℾℙℙ ℒ

3.4.2 Words ending with ^d

The little ^d changes to big **d** when an ending is added.

	Animate Plural	Diminutive	Locative	Possessive
⊲∩"⁴	⊲∩" d ⊦	⊲∪,¶Q∿~	⊲∩" d "∿	െ∩∩" d ⊦
⊲୮୳┛	⊲୮୳ ୰ ୳	⊲∟∼q∿∼	⊲ℾ℩ ঀ ⊪℩	ᠳᢕ᠋᠋Гᢣ ݸ ᡃ
۰ظ۸۲ م	۰⊲̈́∧۲d۲	⊷JV~,q∿~	⋰⅃୕୵ୢ୳	ਗ਼੶੶ਗ਼ ੶੶ਖ਼
ьj	·Ĺ┫ ^Ⴑ	·Ľ┫ℳ∽	∙Ĺ d ™	டு⊾

3.4.3 Words ending with °

If the word ends in °, and an ending is added, the ° is kept only if the suffix is ".

∿9Ç ∘	٦٩٩٩
.~j•	

When the animate plural ending is added to a noun, the \circ becomes \triangleright .

Singular	Plural
<i>د</i> ّ<	فر≺⊳۲
ĹσĊ	ĹݮĊ▶ŀ
⊳ri∘	Þri þ u
∆۲۰.p°	∆५.৬►৸

When the animate plural ending is added to a verb, the \circ becomes Δ .

Singular	Plural
σĊ°	᠆ᡬᡃᢂᡃ
Ľ∩·⊲́•	Ĺ∩∙⊲́ '∆ ŀ
·⊲i∕r,r	·4/L 2
$\cdot \Delta \dot{\mathbf{o}}$	᠂᠘ᡝᠱᢂᡃ
۹ŲŲ₀	٩∪Ÿ ₽ ŗ

When the diminutive, locative or possessive ending is added to a noun, the • is dropped.

Singular	Diminutive	Locative/ Simulative	Possessive
ف.< °	<i>ف</i> <⁄۶ ∽	<u>م</u> ـ<"י <i>י</i>	حفـ< <mark>۲</mark>
ĹᠳĊ °	L-is~	ڶ ᠳᡬᡃ ᠃ ᡃ	σĹσĊ ι
⊳ri∘	drij ~	⊳ri "	_i∩i_L

3.4.4 Some exceptions

Be careful of the following words where ^L becomes \bot , ^h becomes \checkmark , and ^m becomes \sim when an ending is added.

Singular	Plural	Locative	Diminutive
⊲∩∟	⊲∩⊒י	⊲∩⅃"י	⊴∩∎∿∽
Ň۲۲	∧ ւ _ๅւ	∧́ г _」"ぃ	∽∟∿∖
۲	_j ሖ ս	_j ∠ ™∪	⅃ℴ℩∽
. ~ <⊳.	$\cdot 4 > \mathbf{v}^{L}$	· ~"	·∢̇́>∾∿∽

More examples of words with these endings:

⊲∩₁	۲۲۲	٦Ļ	∽<⊳.
⊲∩J"i₀₀	∧́ґ⅃"ҍ҅҇҇	ٵ؇ڹ	۰ظ>∾٩
⊲∩٦ċ杀٩̈́٩	^ʹ ϲʹϳィϭ"ΔϷͼ	JYL∝	۰، d>~"ib°
⊲∩JŅŸ.	Ňr·ĹĠŇ	٦Ӵ́ч	⋰⋖ℹ⋗∾Ļ∪
· 19"L∩⊳	Ňr·Ĺ"Ċ" ^ݛ	juu	۰ظ>~i2°
⊲∩⅃∽∪∘₽	∩∧"∆ḋ≀∙Ű	j~~~	᠂⊲৾>∾∽∩∙৾⊌৽
⊲∩Jj₀	ŃгЪ	ᠣ᠋ᢖᡝᡃ᠋	᠂᠊᠋ᡬ᠆ᠵ᠋ᢅ᠕᠋
⊲∩٦ڔڿؚ؋ؠۄ	∼L∿∖	juu	᠂ᢒᡝᠵᢐᠵᡗᠳᢧᡅ

3.5 [⊾] and [∽]

sk	shk	st	sht
۲ ^۲ Ρ·Δ΄۹	Γ~ρ.⊲́°	᠂᠊᠋᠋᠋ᡃ᠋ᡃᡃ᠘ᢣ᠘ᢛ	۰₫∽ĊσĽ
ظ ^{ّر} ۹۰(")	j∽þ	⊲۲∩י	·⊲ં∽∩"∆i.°
Γ·ρι	Г∽р∙д́°	ᠳᡃ᠋ᢕᠡ	ŗ~ç.<"
⊳∿ף∘	₽∾₽∎⊲г	ᠳᡃᢗᡃ	⊲∽∩₅∟
sch	shch	sp	shp
᠘ᡝ᠘ᡔ	ᠳᢅᡗᡗᢁ	ᠳᡃ᠕ᡣ᠂ᢒ᠋	Ċ~`>
⊲۲۲√۲۹¢۰	√∽٢	^ل امک	Å∽√L₀
⊲۲ׂר	⊳∽Րൎഄ൳∽	۲५>ݠ	<i>جمخ</i> من
مانحم	\triangleright ^{oo} u	۹۲۷°	≤~∨∿p
ᠵ᠋ᡃ᠋ᢆᢣ᠋ᡗ᠂᠋ᢆᢣᢀ	d.Ċ∽ŀ	ቦኁ√⊦ሀℯ	∧∽∧౮∩ [∟]
⊲⊌∟،∟	∽ı	᠂᠊᠋᠋ᡃ᠋ᡝ᠕ᢣ᠘ᡃ	⊲∽∖∿₅
᠙ᢣᡗᡃ᠋᠄᠘	Ċ	ᡥ᠋	⊲∽∧∽∩i.°
ݥݭ	<u> ۲</u> ۵۲	ᡣᢣ᠕ᢆᡃᡠ	∆∽∨∟
^ل ەربە	ĕ₽∿Ր"⊲́°	ᡥ᠕ᡥᡝᢀ	×∼≺∘
٢،٣٩٩،٢	⊳∾Ს∪"٩∾	ᡥ᠕ᠳ᠒᠋᠋᠂᠊ᢩᡬᢀ	∆∽∨∪్∘

Here are some words with ` and ` before a consonant. These sounds may be difficult to hear for some speakers, so check with the dictionary.

3.6 The use of the " (h) ילי"ל.∢iף⊶

The " (h) symbol is a difficult one to use correctly. There are a few places where it is used predictably, mostly in grammatical endings, but otherwise, you have to train yourself to hear it when someone says a word.

The "(h) symbol does not occur at the beginning of a word, except in names.

"⊽౮ఁ "⊽౮° "ఁఁ

3.6.1 " in the middle of a word

The " is used in the middle of a word between two vowel sounds or before a consonant. Here are some examples:

Before Δ , $\dot{\Delta}$, \triangleright , $\dot{\triangleright}$, \triangleleft , $\dot{\triangleleft}$, $\cdot\dot{\triangleleft}$	Before ∧, ∧, >, ≻, ≺, ≺, <
∧"∆ ^L	⊳ ''∧°
⊳∩"⊲L	 م
⊳∩".⊲́°	<u>ۂ</u> "ۂ"ڶ°
⊳Гσ"≻·∆°	≺́"∧°
⊳ ^щ ׂ⊳୮ィ°	ĻĿ-Ą'n<
⊳"∆́	ightarrow"
⊳∩"∆i°	⊳∩"<
ۻ ۨ ڹۻ	⊳"∧♂₽°
ᠵ᠊ᡬ᠋ᡃᠠᢩᢅ⊲°	Γጋρ"<
Ĺ∩"Å₽°	⊳"∹∿°
Ĺ"Á\}°	⊳୴⋰≺∧≻°
Γrσ"Δ́Ρ°	< ['] "∧°
Before ∩, ၐ, Ͻ, ͻ, ċ, ·ċ, ·	Before ∩, Ė, J, J, İ, ŀ, ŀ
۲ ^и с	,
<"∩L	ÞĊ ⁱⁱ l
⊳"∩°	>"∩∆Ċ°
⊳"Ċ°	$\nabla \mathbf{b}_{\mathbf{n}}$
$\nabla h_{H} \cup \nabla_{\sigma}$	بې الم
ڬ٦٣Ċ°	خ س نه <u>خ</u>
ے، ار	_ف"∩Ė"، د
ݥݳݢ	⊲in∪م
⊳"Ċ∆"	Г"іЭ
Ċ"∩∧☆°	: ان∧ف°
Before P, P, d, d, b, b, b, d	Before ک, ک, ح, خ, ک, نخ
⊲¦۳۹۲₀	°≺ n ⊳.
$\triangleleft \cap^{n_{\mathfrak{d}}}$	۰، Anita
٩٩٩	L∾U9nè₀
Ĺ"ċ	ĻиĻo

L.a	٥ م
⊳"d°	∧┌┉┶°
⊳"d [∟] "	°۲ ₆ ۲۳
⊳"bL°	ݥݫ"ݩە
⊴́"d°	, γ., γ., γ., γ., γ., γ., γ., γ., γ., γ.
٩٣٩	° ۲۰۶٬

It is sometimes difficult to hear the " sound but it becomes easier to hear when you say these pairs of words:

With " (h)	Without " (h)
Lng	La
۲٬۳۷۰	۲ ^۰ ∩۹
⊷ُ ا≺	°>4∆
Гѻ ӵ ю	۲œ.jo
٥ڂؚٳؠڂ	ĻĻo
°خره"۲	۲۹،۰۰۵
Ľ"ċ	ĹĊ
٩٩٩	٩٩
۲ ^{ис}	ГĊ ^ь
∧"Ċ°	ڂڬ
⊳"Ր∧∩⊾	⊳r∧∩⊾
^{ەن} ى ^ن اف	°۲ن∕۲نف
∹ "∧Ċ°	≺́∧Ċ°

3.6.2 " at the end of a word

At the end of a word " (h) is used to mark grammatical categories such as the inanimate plural of nouns, obviative of animate nouns, locative of nouns, imperative marker of verbs, etc.

Inanimate plural marker

Nouns:

Plural
⊳ċ∹∘۳
Γrσ"Δρ°"
Г" с "
⊳<"
∩∹Ր⅃⋈▫"
ѽҫ҅Ҏҹҧ
⊳ריכיו

Verbs:

Singular	Plural
٥	ا∾∾٦
م	ݘ؇≻₀'n
Г"·b°	Г".6°"
جہç٩۔	<"Ċd∝"
_oq₀	_ide
ᡣ᠅᠋᠆᠆	ᡣ᠋ᠳ᠙
Г∩⊶	┎┍∘┉
.⊴∾Ço	۰.Ų∾Çon
٠ظٰ<ٰ٩	۰ظجٰ٥١١

Animate obviative marker

Possessed animate nouns

" (h) is used for when the possessor is third person (he, she, they)

" (h) is not used when the possessor is first or second person (I, you, we)

⊳"Ċḋ"	⊳"Ċḋ≻°"	⊳"Ċ⊳·ḋ°"	ڬ۬ڬ"ڡ۬	؎۬ڗڹؚ؆ؚ
⊳ċḋ"	⊳₽'nчq	⊳ŗ⊳.⊲.₀.	σĠŻ	م ؋ڹڮ؋
⊳drч	⊳┩ᡪᡪᢣ₀┉	⊳q५५.⊲₀"	סלר ^ג	م و <i>ا</i> رابح
⊳ċ⊔	⊳ċг≻∘"	⊳ċŗ∙⊲́°"	σĊ	٥- ز <u>ا</u> مَ ٩

Obviative Nouns with Transitive Animate Verbs

When a Transitive Animate Verb has two third persons, one of them (is obviative) and adds an " (h) at the end.

⊲ూ౬ం రా౬ా చేరా× ashimâu nitâm**h** ânî. రా౬ా ⊲ూ౬దరె చేరా"×

nitâm ashimiku ânî**-h**.

⊲i↔ ··⊲i<Γəi ↔'Ċ'"x
 ânî wâpamikû nistâs-h.

 \vec{d} خ $\cdot \vec{d}$ \wedge أله σ^{4} C^{4} " $_{x}$ ânî wâpimâu nistâs**-h**. " (h) on expressions of time

" (h) can be added to an expression of time, when something happens more than once.

" (h) on habitual verbs

" (h) is found on conjugation #12b to indicate a habitual or repetitive event: 'whenever...'

Conjunct Indicative Neutral (CIN) (#11) CIN Habitual-Iterative (#12b)

⊲ִ Ļָראָ₀	ĹſィĠᡆᠬ
ġ ţuĥa	ة أ <i>ر</i> بة.
ί ŕr⊣y⊶	i Ėr∕i̇́s⊲"
ᡝᢣᢅ᠆ᡔᢅ᠋᠆ᢣ	۳،۲ <u>،</u> ۲۶،۲

" (h) as a marker of Imperative verbs for second person singular forms

3rd person 's/he'	2nd person singular '(you)'
ᠵ᠊᠋Ċ°	σ < "
⊲>Lacio	∠>L_,C,
Гѻ"ю́°	۲ ๛ "
٨r·Ġ٨°	∧r·i<"
σPj	σ-PL"
ċΓ°	<u>ن</u> ـــ
·∢√"∩∟	·4\"<"
∩"Ր∽₽∟	∩∥∩∞ьп

Note that " (h) is used for the command forms 'do it to it' and 'do it to me' but not for 'do it to him'.

	(do it to) it	(do 1t to) me	(do it to) him
ف_ز•	Ċ	ç∾⊪	٠ م
⊳∩∧ċ°	⊳∩∧си	⊳∪∨∾п	$ ho h \wedge ho$
·⊲i∧i2°	·⊲́∧"<"	·⊲́∧Ľ"	·⊲́∧∟
Γ [、] Ρ·Ϥ	Гчын	ͳϞϼͽ·ͷ	Γ ዮ°
۲œю°	Γσ∽"	Γσ∾"	Γσ∾

Revised March 2017

Northern Spelling Manual

3.6.3 Locative suffix

In the locative marker for nouns and particles " (h) is used before ${}^{\mathbf{b}}$. Note that not all particles use " ${}^{\mathbf{b}}$.

Locative suffix on particles

" (h) is used	" (h) is not used
ÞĊ"L	Ċ⊳ŀ
҆҅Ҡ҅"∩рг " ь	ĊĊ⊳ŀ
ݢĊ٢ "، / ܡĊ٢ "،	Ս√∾۹ր
⊲₽Lm	Ր∽∩∆৸
Ĺ ſ" レ	ightarrow ightarrow ho
÷bo "	רא~U"Ur
∆∽∧Γ"∿	
ᠳ"᠘᠋ᡃ᠘᠊ᠳ ᠃ ᡃ	
ᠳ᠋᠋᠋᠋᠋᠋᠆᠋᠃ᡝ᠘ᡔ ᠃ ᡃ	
ݥݺ<	
÷"ל "י	

Locative suffix on nouns

Locative	Non-locative
ייג'יי ר	γΥ
<u></u> Ҷ┍ҹ <u></u>	ͺ ϲϼ _ͳ
, Мицини Сили	Ń۲۲
Ѓ∩∙⊲҅"∧ " レ	ŕr∙⊲"<
<u>ز</u> ېمخ ال	Ĺ ^ᡃ ዖᠳ°
Ċ"∩∧☆σ " ∿	Ċ"∩∧∆°
ʿ∆Ր̀℡	'n∆
<u> ۲</u> ۳۹۹ ۳۰	<u>۲</u> ۲۲۹ ۲
Гґѻ"∆҆Ҏѻ " ҍ	Γґσ"ൎΔ₽ᅆ

Note that another ending, which sounds exactly like the locative, can be added to nouns. This is the **simulative** suffix and is translated as "like a".

	Simulative
ڊ. ج	<i>د</i> <"۳
⊲∩L	⊲∩⅃℡

3.6.4 " (h) in Verb Suffixes

If a verb ends in L or $^{\bullet}$, these finals will change to " when U or $^{\bullet}$ is added as a conjunct verb ending.

Independent Order	Conjunct Order
∧୮୷▫	﴿"∧୮∿"⊳
იჟ ა ო	4" N9V. p
·⊲∖∧"∩L	₽"∩"∿i di
ϝϧϧ	<u></u> ظ" ۲۶۳ ۵
$\dot{\sigma} \wedge \mathbf{a}$	ظ" ה∧" י
$\Box a$	4" rua"
_id e	ں "ہف "ک
ᡣ᠋ᡠᢣᡆ ᠌	ᡖ ᡣ᠅ᠳ᠕ ᡣ
⊳∩∧∩ L	i ⊳r∧∩"∎

The endings of some verbs change the final $^{\circ}$ to " before $^{\circ}$ in the plural form:

singular) خ	(plural) مزم
ϳ σ<ϳ ͽ	ݩ ݮ<ݔ
Ġ ġānyā	Ӹ <u></u> а́л∩гӈ
ӹ Δ"Ͻ∩Ĺ 	ӹ_Δ"ン∩Ĺ " "

Other verbs endings change the final • to " before • in the plural form:

خہ (singular)	(plural) مخې
i σ<>>•	ڶ ᠳᡬᢣ ᠃ ٵ
ġ 47UVþ	ŗ qvusha

Part Four: ∆, Å and ≻

4.1 Δ at the end of words

4.2 $\dot{\Delta}$ and Δ in the middle of a word

After (h) " the long $\dot{\Delta}$ is used:

٢٢ "ۿ ڶ٥	ℾィℴ ℸ Åℙ℠
⊳Ċſ"Åio	⊳ċг"å°≏
r∽⊃∆" ∆ i°	Ր∽Ͻ·∆"ൎൔℙ℠
i∽p" 太 i∘	ℹ∽ℙ"ൎൔ₽▫
∽∾" ∆ i°	ᡗᠭ᠋ᡭ₽ݠ
⊲∾" ∆ i°	⊲∾"ൎൔҎ҇҇

A few words with Δ in the middle are given here, but there are more in the dictionary.

⊴**∀**.⊴.~ ⊴**∀**.⊴.. ⊴**∀**....

4.3 Using →

▲ is used in verb endings:

	sleep	sit
(¡¬¬)	ہ ج:جہ م	۹۷ _۲ ۰
(イ ⁽)	ڶ ٦<۬	₽° d∖
(イ ⁽ イ)	╘ σĊ ^c	₽ ⊲∨c
	ᢆb σ <΄ μ ^ι "	₽°¶
(مېزې	ن <i>ح</i> <ّن"	ġ UVÀnn
(مېرې)	ڶ ڂڔۼ ۥۥ	₽ .4 √⊳ 9

Revised March 2017

Northern Spelling Manual

(أ\\$\.4\)	ەخىم م	ەخرەك م
(ج:ج:جo)	نه مـخ ^ر	β ⊲∧r
	white	visible
	₽. A<	به تومیر
	Ŀ.⊲<.	۱۳۳۳ م
	Ŀ IJ	6 _6d- 7 4
	Ŀ" (<i>\</i>	بوم ۳۲

Keep the \nearrow in words which end in $\land \land \circ$ when they add a suffix:

∧Г∩∧≻°	∧Г∩∧≁"⊲́∘	۸۲۲۸ ۴ ۳۷
∧L∨≻₀	∧⊓∧ ≁ ⊲∘	×۲۸ ۲ ۳
⊳∙५∧≻°	⊳∙ŗ√ ⊁ "⊲ຸ	⊳.ڹ∧ ۲ "ư
°4/\1"	∩"∩∧ ⁺ "⊲́°	°⊃ׁ" ⊀ ∧٦"٦
جV>	<\ 4	<\ 4 \\

Be careful of these words, which sound similar but are written differently.

∽	cod	∙∀۲	it (anim) howls
4 1	pus	ہ⊲⊲	her/his body

4.4 New spelling for Co and ∩do, ⊃∩ and ⊃∩ do

Note that the words $\Delta^{"}\dot{C}^{\circ}$ and $\Delta^{"}\cap d^{\circ}$, $\Delta^{"}\supset\cap^{-}\dot{d}^{\circ}$, begin with $\Delta^{"}\dots$ which is often not pronounced. Nevertheless it is written. It can be heard clearly when a prefix is added to the word or the first vowel is changed. For example: $\Delta^{"}\dot{C}^{\circ}$, $\cap^{"}\dot{C}^{\circ}$, $\dot{\triangleleft}^{"}\dot{C}\Delta^{\circ}$.

Write	Not
۵ "Ċ°	Ċ°
עיי∩ל⊶	U9 _e
∆ "⊃∩∟	СUг
∆"⊃∩∙⊲́°	⊃U∙Ą₀

Part Five: Syllabic Symbols not to forget to write

5.1 Short \triangle or \triangleleft at the beginning

In many words the short \triangle or \triangleleft at the beginning is not pronounced in ordinary fast speech. However, you can hear it clearly when a prefix is added to the beginning of a word. Make sure to write the \triangle or \triangleleft , even when it is not audible or pronounced.

4
┫ݩ┐⊔
◄∽⊃∩°
∢∧৴৾
∢ġĊċ
┫ᢣᢕᡗᡃ
┫Ӷӄ╕
◄∩⅃∿∽
⋖ ∙ḃ∧"Ċσ₋
∢₽₽₽

5.2. ☆ and ⊳

It is often difficult to hear the difference between Δ and \triangleright . In order to decide which one to write, it is best to check with the dictionary.

Δ	⊳
ⅈℽℴ	⋫∽∪;₽⋴
৻৵ঀ৵	►'dc
'∆ ר	►∋°
മം്∩"⊲്°	▶┌◡▫

5.3 ∆, ∆ and ⊳

Words beginning with Δ , $\dot{\Delta}$ and \triangleright can sound alike before $\dot{\succ}$, $\dot{\flat}$ and $\vec{\lor}$.

Δ		×خ		⊳	
∡ וֹס∝ גי	plate it howls	ఉ ం" ఉం" ఉదం ఉ≻ ఉ≻	them his wife his bag, load his bladder she, he	►≻°	her/his body

Note the irregular possessed forms:

ێ ڬ	۲۲ خ ک≺ (ف=∆+∠- ۲۶) (۲+∆=d)
Ϫϳϧϧͼ	۲۹۹۹ م نوبی میل م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م م
⊵∩ℴ₽℠	Ϸ∩σΡ°" (D+D=Ϸ) •∩σΡ°" ϳ∩σΡ°"
⊳心₽₽₽	₽₽₽₽₽° (►+►=►) ₽₽₽₽₽₽° ₽₽₽₽₽₽
Dependent noun סיר'ר"	(ס+⊳=סׂ) ס ׂר'ר' (ר+⊳=סׂ)

Do not confuse $\dot{\Delta}\dot{\flat}$ 'meat' with $\dot{\flat}\dot{\flat}$ 'flesh of the body', which is a dependent noun:		
ÞŸ	her/his own flesh	
ح ^ن ح ^ب	my own flesh	
ͳϧϧ	your own flesh	

5.4 Δ° at the end of a word

A noun can be made from a verb by adding Δ° .

Verb	Noun
Ċ"∩∧°	Ċ"∩> ۵ ۹
⊲>Γ"	٩٦٢"ج \\$
r∽d∩Li∘	ſŸJ∩ĹĹ ∆ ª
∆rơ"io [,] i	᠘ᠠᡃᠳ"ᢆᡃ᠖ᢣ ᡃ᠋ᢩ᠕ ᡨ

5.5 σ at the beginning of a word

In many words that begin with σ , there is a tendency to write this syllabic symbol as a small \bullet . This symbol is used only at the end of words.

Write	Not
ᠳᢕ"᠔ᡝ᠌᠌ᢦ	₀95
ᡏ᠘	حارم
σ̈́̈́̈́	٩̈́٦̈́
ਗ਼੶੶ਗ਼	٩⊃·ج٧لاه
ਫ਼ ĊГぃ	۹Ċ۲۰
ॸ ∩∙⊲்்ு்்∟	ு∩.⊲்்ர்ட

Some numbers are pronounced two ways, with or without σ at the beginning.

q.Ç∾r	ᠳ᠔᠂ᢗᡝ᠉ᡅ
بېتې مې	ح نجففه

Often words that are written with Γ at the beginning are pronounced with \sim or h. The big Γ should still be written before \cap , \supset , \dot{C} .

Write	Not
ſĊĿ	∽ĊL
₽∩∙∢∿י	∽᠃৵৴৾৴৴
٢ Ċᠳ	ᢣᢗᡃᠳᢣ
ᡗ᠋ᢕ᠋ᢣᡅ	$^{h}\Omega^{h}$
Also before ட்	
Write	Not
ſĊ" ſĸĠ°	۲٬ ۲٬۶۰

Revised March 2017

Northern Spelling Manual

ררֹיי דֹר אַ לֹר **ר**ַי

5.7 ∩ in the middle of a word...

Write	Not
·< `ſ `	·<'>
ѽ" Ր հ∩°	ڬ ^ڹ ۩ڡ
᠕ ᡥ ᡝᢕᠳᡃ	᠕ᡃᡣᠳᡃ
Ե"Ր∽ ∩ σ -	₽₽₽₽

Part Six: Double Consonants

6.1 Where to write a syllabic character twice

In some words we hear double consonants. These are now written as two syllabics. For instance, the word now written as $\Lambda \mathcal{G} \mathcal{G}^d$ used to be written as $\Lambda \mathcal{G}^d$ even though we can clearly hear the $\mathcal{G} \mathcal{G}$. Another example is $\dot{\Lambda}^{"} \dot{\Gamma} \dot{\iota}^{\circ}$, which used to be written as $\dot{\Lambda}^{"} \dot{\iota}^{\circ}$. Sometimes, a word can be put in the diminutive twice, like the words below:

વં∆"dવં bannock	أ∆"dف∽ small piece of bannock	dَ∆"dà ∿∽ cookie
·⊲́ʰ̃b"∆́Ρ° house	·⊲්५b॑"∆̀Р♂∽∽ small house/shed	·⊲́ʰb́"∆́Ρσ √∽ Waskaganish

Other examples of words where you hear double consonants are:

°_ ```	ĊĊŊŊŰ	⊳r∙i ri ∘
⊲ ∿∿ ·j∨j∘	"≏٩ ℃ח "⊳⊷ن	ѵѽѵ҅Ҍ ҎҎ ҹ
٩.Ċ ٠:<	∙¢ ∧∧ ∩ḋ∙	ᡬ ᠈ ᡝᢧᡃᡠ
خ• نه کر ه ۲	∩ ऺ॔ॖॖॖॖ ॖॖॖ ∽	LJ∨
⊳۲۲۲⊳	ר ר∠	ᡣᡃ᠋ᢕᡃ
Note that the first syllabic of	the pair is always short.	

6.2 Endings for verb conjugation (#09)

The endings for the verb conjugation #09 (called the Dubitative Neutral), which can be translated as 'maybe s/he does something', are written with a double syllabic symbol **ri**.

٥٢٦، ٢٠٢٥ - ٢٠	ਗ਼੶ਖ਼୕∧"∩ਖ਼ ୮୲
rrsia ri	ſŀĂŊ"ŊŸ ſ Ĺ
гљі гі	੶ਗ਼ੑੑੑ ੑੑੑ੶ ਗ਼ੑਖ਼
ГЉ Ѓ Ј	∙⊲́∧"∩ӄ ӷі ѻӷ҅

Part Seven: Adding endings to nouns

7.1 Adding endings to nouns which end in ▶

When a diminutive, locative or possessive suffix is added to most words that end in \triangleright , the \triangleright is dropped (see also Words ending with \circ above).

	Diminutive	Locative/ Simulative	Possessive
			· 2
ف_<'٩	a جکہ	فر جس	حفظ
۵۲۰.p۵	᠕᠕᠄ᡁ᠕	᠘ᢣᡃᢆᡝᡅ	ᡔ᠋ᡣᢣᡃᡠ᠋ᡃ
⊳ri∘	⊳ri∽∽	⊳ri"u	۲ine
⊳∽bi°	⊳∽bi∽	⊳∽bi"u	_نهٰ∽ون
∿ب	᠕ᢆᢣᡗᢁ	∧نا	ᠳ᠕ᡃᢆᡝ
ĹႻĊ°	Loiss	ĹᠳĊᡃᡃᡃᡃ	σĹσĊĹ
۵∼۹Ç₀	∆~qÇ~	∆~٩Ç"۳	₽U∾٩Ċ٢
°d.	~b~		᠆᠊᠋᠅ᢆᡃᡠᡃ
⊴\\۹۹	⊴∀"٩٩	⊲_"٩ج"٢	ھرز∀"٩ج۲
<u>~</u> ~•	~~ <i>`</i>	$\dot{<}\dot{<}$ "L	σ−ĊĊĽ
Exceptions			

·4° ·4⊳∽ ·4⊳"

ح∙⊲⊂۲

Adding endings to nouns which end in Δ 7.2

When the noun ends in Δ , often the Δ is dropped.

	Diminutive	Locative/	Possessive
		Simulative	
$\triangleleft > \triangle$	$<\!$	⊲>"₀	$\sigma > \Delta$
		$d \wedge \infty$ "u	$\sigma \wedge \sim \Delta$
∆<ځ⊂ذ	~<לכאׂ	'n≪ڂۯۻ	٦<ئ رن،

Be careful of the following words where **d** becomes **·b**...

	Diminutive	Locative/	Possessive
		Simulative	
⊲∽ପ∆	୰ଦ∙₽ୖ	⊲⊶⊷	᠆᠆᠆ঀ
⊷, ₩	⊷ٍ ۹.	<u>ښ</u> ۳ ۰، بې	ਗ਼੶∆ "੶৳ ੶
.⊽∾q⊽	.⊽ ∾.ף ~	੶∆ ∽.ຩ "Ⴑ	_• .₽ ∽.
⊳⊲"∩∽ d ∆	⊳┥"∩∽ . ₽∽	ℙⅆ"Ր∽ ൎ ϐ"Ⴑ	ᠴ᠆ᡣ᠆ᡘᢁᢅ᠘

7.3 Adding endings to nouns which end in ∩°, *J*°, *P*°, *P*°

When a suffix for the diminutive, locative, or possessive is added to these words, the syllabic changes from Γ° to $\dot{\Gamma}$, \mathcal{I}° to $\dot{\mathcal{I}}$, \mathcal{I}° to $\dot{\mathcal{I}}$, and \mathcal{I}° to \mathcal{I} .

	Diminutive	Locative/	Possessive
		Simulative	
∧Ր⁰	∧רׄ∽	∧ 广 "∿	ح∕ ڔل ۲
∧∿°	᠕᠕᠂	∧ு்	ஏ∧ ர் ∟
⊷∆∧۲°	₼́∧р́∽∽	ѽ∧Ր҅"็	ᠳ:△́∧ Ր் └
٥"b"b	ൎႱ"Ⴑ 广 ∽∽	ڶ "ڶ٢	ơ-ḃ"ḃ 广 ∟
⊳"ׂ⊳୮ݛ⁰	⊳"ׂ⊳୮ݨ∿∽	⊳"ׂ⊳ר ₁ "₀	יק ר⊲"ׂיבׂ
۲"i љ°	ℾ"ℹ ⋰ ∽∽	டுப் ர் "	சு ⊺ "ப் ∕ர் ∟
∘م√∨⊳	⋰⋌৾⋏∕⋗	·ḋ∧rʲ℡	ح∙⊲ׂ∧ ۲ ۲
∘4 ≺∆́	⋈⊲≺	∠்ு ச	ᠳᡤᡝᢣ ᡝ ᡃ

There are words which end in $\mathbf{\dot{J}}$ or $\mathbf{\dot{>}}$ that do not change to $\mathbf{\dot{\Gamma}}$ or $\mathbf{\dot{\cap}}$.

	Diminutive	Locative/	Possessive
		Simulative	
Ĺ	∼ i ⊳	⊴` 」 "∿	ݮĊ ⅃ ـ
۲σ	⊂ ن ∽	Γσ · Ͻ" ^ϧ	ᠳ᠋ᡏᠳ ᠋ᢆ ᠘

Part Eight: 2° and 2 at the end of a word and other ...iu ...uu endings

In the Northern dialects many of the VAI verbs in the dictionary now end in either r'° or r'. This is to reflect the pronunciation of elders, as well as the fact that the verbs ending in r'° have r' in most endings.

For example $\triangleleft^{"} d \mathbf{r}^{o}$ conjugates as $\sigma \dot{C}^{"} d \mathbf{r}^{o}$, $\cap \dot{C} d \mathbf{r}^{o}$, $\dot{b} \dot{q}^{"} d \mathbf{r}^{c}$, etc. In the grammar, we say that this verb has a stem ending in short i.

On the other hand, $\dot{\Gamma} \cap \dot{A}$ conjugates as $\sigma \dot{\Gamma} \cap A^{\circ}$, $\dot{\Gamma} \cap A^{\circ}$, $\dot{\Gamma} \cap A^{\circ}$. In the grammar, we say that this verb has a stem ending in short u.

The spelling of $\forall " \forall r' \circ$ used to be $\forall " \forall r' \circ$ but has been changed to make it much easier to write all the other endings for each verb.

Note that in the Southern dialect, people do not write the difference in the spelling of the dictionary form, and need to look up the stem to find out whether the verb conjugates with short i or short u.

 r'° or r' are not the only endings that work this way. Here are some examples of the verbs in the dictionary which have a different ending in Northern and Southern, as well as ones that have the same ending.

DIFFERENT (i stem)

Northern	Southern	Northern	Southern
D)\ r o	i ∂⊂⊲	Ċ∩ ċ	Ċ∩ ċ
م ام.	⊲́"d /i	<u>і</u> , "С	نہ "Ċ ہ i
~ P94>	<٢	·ÁĊ> 、	٠ĠĊ> ௷
⊲∧°	⊲ `≻	Ċ"ſ `>	Ċ"ſ `>
Ċ ₽°	ŕ j	j j	(no word)
⊲≻ Г∘	≤->L	ر ٩٦	с ь ј
∧Г∧Ъ∘	∧Г< ⋞	۰۲ ۲	۲
949 U°	d۲d	·<`۲'	•∕\ ℃
		۰خن ه	۰ظنظ
` ം`_°	فمنف		
ᠮ᠂᠊ᡠ᠋᠋᠈ᠳᠣᡃᢆ	ف امن ۲		

Revised March 2017

SAME (u stem)

8.1 Verbs ending in ר°

Verbs ending in $\mathbf{r}^{\prime o}$ are illustrated below, with different endings which have \mathbf{r}^{\prime} , along with other verbs that work the same way.

first person independent	third person conjunct	dictionary form
ഄ∪,>.⊶ ⊦ ₀	ϳ δ Δ"∩"Ͻ <u>Λ</u> >·ἀ ͱ ^ι	Δ ")) \wedge , $$
∙۲ ۹۵غ	ė ⊳⊃∩ γ α ∂	⊳⊃∩₽
≟∩Ĺ·ḋ≻"ĊJ ₽ ₽	ġ dliju	⊳∩Ĺ·⊲́≻"ĊJ r °
ᡔᢥᡗᡃ᠋ᡃ᠘ᡃ᠆ᡬᢖ ᢇ	Ġ ŅĿŗŖĊŦĸĊ٩ ħ	<u></u> кЪ, кЪ, к
_oq. V. @	₽ ⊳9 ∿∿ с	⊳q ∿∿₀
⊷ib۲۲ ۲	Ġ ⊳Ġr∩ r ¢	D677 6
ݮݫݥݐڮ	Ŀ <ċ∽∩ ∩∧ ∙	≺ć∽∩ ∩∧∘

8.2 Verbs ending in ^{*i*}

Verbs ending in \vec{A} are illustrated below, with different endings which have \vec{A} , along with other verbs that work the same way. In these verbs you can still hear the \vec{A} sound at the end when different endings are used. For a word like $\dot{\Gamma}\cap\vec{A}$ you cannot say $\sigma\dot{\Gamma}\cap\vec{A}^{\circ}$ or \dot{b} $\dot{\Gamma}\cap\vec{A}^{\circ}$ or it will not take the \vec{A}° ending. But you can still hear the \triangleright sound when you say $\sigma\dot{\Gamma}\cap\vec{A}^{\circ}$ or \dot{b} $\dot{\Gamma}\cap\vec{A}^{\circ}$ so it takes a \dot{a} ending. The rule is the same for any of the other consonants \vec{a} , \vec{J} and so on.

first person independent	third person conjunct	dictionary form
≟∩"Ċ∧ ⊦ ≏	ċ ⊳∩"ċ∧ ⊦ ⊂	⊳∩"Ċ∧ ŗ
୶୳୕୲୰୰୰୰	ġ dándļu	⊳ċ₅∿⊳ŗ∪
≟∩ൎb ୷ ⁰	ė ⊳∩∙ė r ⊂	⊳∩∙b ri
ᡔ᠋ᡬᡃ᠋ᡃᡬ ᡝ ᢩᡘ	Ь ́л"Ċ ́н с	نہ '⊃"∧
ം∩∧ില്	₽UVU q a	⊳r∧∩ j
ݮݕݕ _ݘ ݫ⊳ݫ ٵ ݮ	ŀ ∧∽Ċ⊳Ċ 」 ⊂	,∼c⊳c j
☞ൎ⅄"∩ĊĊՐ ⅃ ᅆ	ŀ Ż"NĊĊr j ¢	,×"∩ċċr i

Part Nine: Boundaries

9.1. Adding a personal prefix

9.1.1 Personal Prefix on Nouns

The personal prefixes are σ , Γ , \triangleright , and are added to possessed nouns. The personal prefixes σ , Γ are added to Independent verb stems. They are written joined to the word or the first preverb.

	>ښخ
ά	ஏ ர்ர்∧∟
Ϋ́	෦ிப்பு
٠ ڬ	⊳ ர்ர்∧∟"
÷-	ݮൎ៸ൎ∕∧Րൎഄഀ
٥-م ب	ſ ᡤᡤ∧Гᠳ°
۰ې٠جې	ᡗ᠕ᢆᡗ᠕ᡗ
	⋫⋰⋰∧ℾ⋰⊲

If the word begins with Δ or \triangleleft , then add $\sigma \cap$, $\cap \cap$, or $\triangleright \cap$.

	৵৻ঽ৾৴৵
έ	൳⋂·⊲ஂഀഀഀൎ
4ń	டப ்புப்
٠	⋗⋂·⊲҆҄҄҄҄҄҄ヶํ∟"
	۵۰۰۴۰
4-9	ᠳ᠒ᢣ᠄ᢆᡠ᠋᠘
Ϋ́	ᡗ᠋᠒ᢣ᠂ᢆᡖ᠋
٠ أ	Ϸ⋂ᡃᢆ᠂ᡖ᠋

If the noun begins with \blacktriangleright , then use $\dot{\bullet}$ for the first person ($\dot{\bullet}$ \land my, $\dot{\bullet}$ $\dot{\bullet}$ our but not your) and \dot{d} for the second person ($\dot{\Box} \sigma^{\circ}$ our (you and I), $\dot{\Box}$, $\dot{\Box} \cdot \dot{\Box}^{\circ}$ your); for the third person ($\dot{\Box} \dot{\Box}$ her/his, $\dot{\Box} \dot{\Box} \cdot \dot{\Box}^{\circ}$ their) use a long $\dot{\blacktriangleright}$:

$$\blacktriangleright\dot{c}\dot{<}^{\circ}$$
our $\dot{\Box}\dot{c}\dot{<}\sigma\dot{a}^{\circ}$ my $\dot{\Box}\dot{c}\dot{<}^{\circ}$ our $\dot{\Box}\dot{c}\dot{<}\sigma\dot{a}^{\circ}$ our $\dot{d}\dot{c}\dot{<}\sigma\sigma^{\circ}$ our $\dot{d}\dot{c}\dot{<}\sigma\sigma^{\circ}$ your $\dot{d}\dot{c}\dot{<}^{\circ}$ your $\dot{d}\dot{c}\dot{<}\sigma\dot{\sigma}\dot{\circ}^{\circ}$ her/his $\dot{\blacktriangleright}\dot{c}\dot{<}^{\circ}$ their $\dot{\blacktriangleright}\dot{c}\dot{<}\sigma\dot{-}\dot{d}^{\circ}$

Note that some people would like to write \triangleright twice for $\mathbf{\dot{\diamond}} \mathbf{\dot{c}} \mathbf{\dot{\diamond}}^{\circ}$: $\mathbf{\diamond \mathbf{\dot{\diamond}}} \mathbf{\dot{c}} \mathbf{\dot{\diamond}}^{\circ}$ but this creates problems with the current technology where all double vowels are automatically converted to long vowels in typing tools and syllabic convertors.

Note that it is a very common for children to use \mathbf{j} instead of \mathbf{d} in words (this is a language change that makes it more regular):

Write the traditional form	Not
ġ "Ċ:À	j"Ċ:À
٩Ċ<̈́	jĊ∹≏
d ァァ⊦	امېز

For some nouns these prefixes are already part of the word. These words are mostly names of relatives and body parts and are called dependent nouns (marked **nad** or **nid** in the dictionary).

♂ dr ^v	ᠳᡃᢆᡠᢈ
ſ dr ^ĸ	ſ ᡃᡖᢈ
⊳ dr ^y	►spc

A few dependent nouns are not the names of relatives or body parts.

⊲∩∟		ΓĊ	ĻΆς
σĊ	$\dot{\sigma}^{\iota}$	ح Ċ	ئ ح:~
ſĊ	Γ ^ι	۲Ċ	ℎℶℴ
ÞĊ⊔"	۰Å	ÞĊ৸	×¢∆د

The word $\triangleleft > \triangle$ has different pronunciations:

Full form (possessive prefix + t + apui)	Contracted form
ச∩>∆	σ >∆
r∩>∆	ר>∆
► ∩ >∆"	▶>∆"

9.1.2 Personal Prefix on Verbs

The personal prefixes σ , Γ are added to Independent verb stems. They are joined to the word or the first preverb. Note that there is no personal prefix added before the third person (he, she, her/his X) forms.

Γ·ρι

ά	ݮ᠘ݷݸݐ
4Ń	Ր 「`b°
Ϋ́Δ	Гърг
<u>،</u> بې	ح ٢،؋ڡۧ
۰م ب	ſ ſŸĠġਗ਼
٩ ⊳.ج	٦ ٢،؋٣٠٩
۰×ظ۰	⋫⋰⋰∧ℾ⋰₫॰"

If the verb begins with Δ or \triangleleft , then add $\sigma \cap$, $\cap \cap$, or $\triangleright \cap$.

	⊲∧∘	۵۰۰۹۹
ት	ᠳ᠐᠕ᅆ	ᠳᠺᡃᡃᢆᡠ᠘ᢛ
4Ń	₽∪√₽	ᡗ᠋ᡣᢣᢆᡠ᠘᠊
٠Δ̈́	$\triangleleft \wedge^{\circ}$	∆٢٠،٢

If the verb begins with \triangleright , then use $\dot{\mathbf{o}}$ for the first person ($\dot{\mathbf{o}} \vdash \mathbf{I}', \dot{\mathbf{o}} \vdash \mathbf{o}$ 'we (but not you)' and $\mathbf{\dot{d}}$ for the second person ($\dot{\mathbf{o}} \vdash \mathbf{J}$ 'you [singular]', $\dot{\mathbf{o}} \vdash \mathbf{o} = \mathbf{o}$ (you and I)', $\dot{\mathbf{o}} \vdash \mathbf{o} = \mathbf{o}$ (you [plural]'); for the third person no personal prefix is used on verbs.

	⊳ "רׄ•	⊳∩₅⊦
ራት	≏مٰ "ف	ٺ ∩ف [≏]
Ϋ́	ġ "ሶ⊶	i ∩⊶°
÷۶۰	ٺ ''ن`	_ن ≙∩فف
٥- م	ദ്" റ്പ്റ°	₫ ∩ൎ௳ ௺
۰Þ·ج	ḋ" ᡤ௷.⊲₀	₫ ∩ຆຆ.⊲຺₀
÷خ	⊳"Ċ°	⊳∩₅∟
٥ ٩ ٩ ٩	⊳"ŕ∙∆י	⊳∩ݮ⅃ݨ

Note that it is very common for children to use \mathbf{j} instead of \mathbf{d} in words, due to regular language change:

Write	Not
ď "Ċ:À	j"Ċ.Ă
d ذ<ٰ⊶	jĊ∹⊶
d איר	ا∽من

9.2 Using preverbs

A preverb is a short word, used before a verb. When there are several preverbs they occur in a fixed order: first the ones that indicate grammatical ideas such as subordination, then, the ones for tense (future, past), then, the ones for mood (want, can, should) and then the lexical ones indicating aspect or quality. These preverbs are written separately from the verb. Here are some examples: with an Independent verb with a Conjunct verb

present or neutral		ڶ ؖؖ $\sigma < c$
present or neutral		┥ "
future	٢₽	i σ< ^c
future	₽ ∩	
past	ŕ"	ൎ₀ "
should have	Ր∧ "	
should	₽∩	
should	ſ₽	
want to 📩 🖌	۔ ج	ڶ ڬ " ܡ≺ׂ̈́ / • ┥̈ " ܡ≺̈́
go to حن م	ᡔ᠊᠋᠅	ظ" من مخ ^ر / فن مخ ^ر

Preverbs can undergo initial change, like $\dot{\mathbf{a}}\dot{\mathbf{b}}$ and $\dot{\mathbf{a}}$ " above. This happens only when they end up in the first position, when there is no preverb $\dot{\mathbf{a}}$ " or $\dot{\mathbf{b}}$ " occupying the first position.

If there is more than one preverb, they are all written separately from each other.

with an Independent verb	with a Conjunct verb
۲۴ نک ٰ ۳۲	ᅝ ᡤ ᠳ᠍᠍<ᢅ
ӷ҅" ѽ "	ڟ۬" ᡤ" ज
٢٨" ᡤ " ᠳ<ਂ°	┥゙" ぶ "
ר ף וֹי " ס-<י	ί ŕ" σ< ^ζ

If a preverb occurs after a personal prefix σ or Γ , the prefix σ or Γ is joined to the first preverb. These personal prefixes are used only with Independent verbs. Any preverb following the first one is separated.

ज़∆॑ " ज़ ॔ ऀ	ਗ਼ੵ੶∆ " ਗ਼ੑੑ੶
₢₽ ज∹ऀऀ	Ր₽ൎ∆ " σ<ਂ⁼
ſ₽	Ր∧" ൎ∆ " σ<்⁼
ਰ∧" ਰ<ਂੇ	♂∧" 泣" ♂<ਁ
	ਗ਼੶੶੶੶

In the examples below, see how the lexical preverb $\sigma \dot{\mathbf{5}}$ is written separately from the past preverb $\dot{\mathbf{r}}^{"}$ in the independent order, and from the preverb $\dot{\mathbf{q}}^{"}$ in the conjunct order. In the last example, initial change (or changed conjunct) has turned $\sigma \dot{\mathbf{5}}$ to $\dot{\mathbf{c}} \dot{\mathbf{5}}$. See also how the personal prefix $\boldsymbol{\sigma}$, attaches to the first preverb in the second sentence.

Γ΄" σ`) ·ὑΛὑ° ⊲σ-Ϲ΄" Ϥ΄" <''<`∩`\Λ`ὑ≻י_×

chiih nituu kwaapichaau anitaah aah paahpaachispiskaayich. 's/he went to fetch the water where it is rocky.'

ᡔᡤ᠃ ᡏᡃ᠂ᢆᡠ᠕ᡶᢩᢀ᠂᠋ᠳᠦᢗᡃ᠋᠂ᢤ᠋ᡃ᠂᠆᠋ᡃ᠆ᡬᡃ᠋ᢣ᠋ᡵ

nichiih nituu kwaapichaan anitaah aah paahpaachispiskaach. 'I went to fetch the water where it is rocky.'

イ" **ヮ**) Pヮ·ベートレレィ ム^k ∧^m∆d ·ベ^k ⊳^mĊ·∆^m_x **aah nituu** kiniwaayimaausut iispiyihiikuu waas uhtaawiih. '...when she goes to baby-sit, (so) her father drives her.'

לב` ה∩.ל∧בֹ ⊲סי",
 naatuu nitiwaapimaat aniyaah chishaayiyiuh.
 ...then s/he goes to see that old man/men.'

Some preverbs can also be used as verb initial and are then written together with the verb. For example: in $\sigma \dot{\Im}^{"} \dot{\triangleright}$, the $\sigma \dot{\Im}$ part is called an initial. The rule to use is: Whenever a preverb is before a verb that exists on its own, the preverb will be separated from the verb, unless it is a fairly common verb. To learn more about preverbs and see more examples, see the preverbs grammar page (http://www.eastcree.org/cree/en/grammar/northern-dialect/verbs/preverbs/) and look up preverbs in the parts of speech in the online dictionary.

<u>Note:</u> Some preverbs can also be used before a noun, in this case they are called 'preforms'. Preforms are written attached to the noun. Example: $\Gamma \checkmark \land \dot{L} \cap \dot{r} \land \dot{\Delta}^{\circ}$ miyupimaatisiiwin. For more examples, see the grammar section on Word formation: Preform + Noun. (http://www.eastcree.org/cree/en/grammar/northern-dialect/word-formation/noun-structure/compound-nouns-a2/)

9.3 Making compound words

Two or three words can be joined together to make one new word, but there are usually spelling changes when this happens. Here are some examples:

σΡϳ + Γγσ"ἀΡ⊆	=	ݮҎൎ⅃ィݮ"ൎ∆Ҏ҇҇
᠂⊲ᡝᡃᡖ᠋᠋᠋᠕ᢆᡩᠥ᠕ᡔ᠂᠂᠂᠋᠕᠆ᡐ	=	·⊲҃҅҅҄҅ӄ҅҅҅ӸӯҌѽҎѻ҄҄ѵӯ҅ѺѽҎҌ₀
⊳ĊĊ° + Ľ'n₽♂°	=	⊳ĊĊŗĹ'n₽σ°
∆∽qç₀ + ⊳ç≺₀	=	∆∽٩Ċ⊳ċ<ْ⊶
·ḋ∧° + ⊲∩"d"∽	=	᠂᠋ᠿ᠕ᠳᢉᡃ᠋ᡰ᠕
r∽∩ª + ⊲r"·b°	=	ℾ∽∩ൎഄℾ"ൎഄഀഀ
⊳ŀ√ŻL° + ŕſŀo	=	ÞĠŀÁĽÞŕſĠ°
ſѽ҅҅҅҅҅҅≻≻° + ҆ҀҎ"∆҅Ҏ҇°	=	ᡗ᠅ᡝᢣᠵ᠘ᡩ᠋᠉ᢩ᠘ᡩ
Ľ'n.po + ⊳Çq∿o	=	Ĺ'nŗ₽Ċ٩℃
۰، ۲∼∪۹، ۲۰ + ۲۰	=	᠂⊲ℹ∟∾∪٩ڼ⊳ĻႱր

More examples can be found in the Word Formation section of the grammar under Noun + Noun, Verb + Noun, and Verb + Verb.

Part Ten: Punctuation

The only punctuation used in Cree texts for schools are a comma (\mathbf{y}) to mark clauses within a sentence and a period (\mathbf{x}) to mark the end of a sentence:

Additionally, *italics* are used to mark dialogue and direct speech in a sentence.

Revised March 2017

Northern Spelling Manual

Part Eleven: Writing Names

Writing the names of children in Cree Syllabics is very difficult these days when parents often give their sons and daughters English names which have non-Cree sounds and unusual spellings. The teacher and the parent may often have different ways of pronouncing, and therefore spelling, the child's name. The child may in fact change the way she or he wishes to spell their name in Syllabics after several years of schooling in Cree.

It is up to the teacher and the parent to agree on what to do, with the understanding that there can be two right ways to spell names, and that the child can choose for herself or himself, usually around grade 3.

The Terminology Forum on the eastcree.org website suggests the Cree syllabics spelling of over 2,700 names: Terminology.eastcree.org

Part Twelve: Standard Roman Orthography (SRO)

12.1 Definition

A standard roman orthography (SRO) is one that exactly matches the syllabic standard orthography. It is useful for typing tools, for computers and for automatic conversions from roman to syllabics and from syllabics to roman. You can find an automatic convertor at: http://syllabics.atlas-ling.ca/

12.2 Vowel length: hats or double vowels

Long vowels in syllabics are marked with a dot above the syllabic character. In roman, there are several options for indicating vowel length by using either double vowels or a hat over the vowel:

Dot above (Syllabics)	Double vowel	Hat over vowel
À	ii	î
.\	uu	û
\triangleleft	aa	â

In other variants of Cree a macron (for example \bar{a} , \bar{i} , \bar{u}) is used, but not in East Cree. The double vowel is often easier to type but makes the word look longer.

 ∇ (e) is always long, but never written with a dot above in syllabics, or in roman, as ee or \hat{e} ., although in some other variants of Cree, it is written \hat{e} .

12.3 Combination of finals

When finals combine it is important to distinguish the sequence of characters that corresponds to two different syllabic characters from the ones that correspond to just one syllabic character. This is why in roman orthography, the hyphen (-) is used to make this distinction:

Compare		with	
t-h	CII	th	ሮ
s-h	μ ι	sh	S
p-h	<"	ph	ৎ

The hyphen is only used when there is a possibility for ambiguity.

Revised March 2017